
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

SSeepptteemmbbeerr  55,,  22002233  
  



 

 
September 1, 2023  3:22:10 PM 
 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET 
PLYMOUTH, NC  27962 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
b) RESO 2023-022 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 
c) RESO 2023-023 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200 
d) RESO 2023-024 Emergency Preparedness Month 2023 
e) RESO 2023-025 Mackey’s History Marker 
f) Washington County Southern Albemarle Association Delegates 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Employee of the Quarter, Chair Walker 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Brief Report from Congressman Davis’ Office to Washington County, Mr. Chris 

Hardee, Regional Director 
 
Item 5 6:45 PM Opioid Spending Update, Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department Director 
 
Item 6 6:55 PM Public Hearing—Riverlight Transit Administration Grant Application:  Ms. Kim 

Blevins, DSS, Riverlight Transit Supervisor 
 
Item 7 7:05 PM Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing—Special Use Permit:  Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Inspections 
 
Item 8 7:30 PM Local Option Sales Tax Referendum, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
Item 9 7:45 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
   
Item 10 7:55 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
 

 



 

 
September 1, 2023  3:22:10 PM 
 

Item 11 8:05 PM  Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
a) Skinnersville Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
b) PK12 Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

 
Item 12 8:15 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  

(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
 

Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
a) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents – See attached 

 
b) RESO 2023-022 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 – See attached 

 
c) RESO 2023-023 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200,000 -- See attached 

 
d) RESO 2023-024 Emergency Preparedness Month 2023 --See attached 

 
e) RESO 2023-025 Mackey’s History Marker—See attached. 

 
Roper Resident William Barber has requested a letter of support from the Commissioners to 
erect a historical marker in Mackey’s.  See attached documentation. 
 

f) Washington County Southern Albemarle Association Delegates—See attached names for 
the Board’s approval for the October 2023 SAA Delegation lunch/meeting 
 

 

















Page 1  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 PLYMOUTH, 

NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-023 
RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT 

ACCEPTANCE OF ARP FUNDS FOR PEA RIDGE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN 
  

WHEREAS, Washington County has received an earmark for the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the 
State Fiscal Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2022-74 to assist eligible units of government with meeting their 
water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding in the amount of $5,472,000 to perform work detailed in the submitted application, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Washington intends to perform said project in accordance with the 
agreed scope of work, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the previous resolution accepting these funds 2023-021 contained typographical errors this resolution 
intends to correct.   
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY,  
 

1. That the County of Washington does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of $5,472,000. 
 

2. That the County of Washington does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be adhered to. 

 
3. That Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with this 
project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be 
required by the Division of Water Infrastructure. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023 at Plymouth, North Carolina. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Boar 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 Page 1 

 

 

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 PLYMOUTH, 

NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-022 
RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT 

ACCEPTANCE OF ARP FUNDS FOR ROPER INTERCONNECTION REPAIRS 
 

 WHEREAS, Washington County has received an earmark for the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the 
State Fiscal Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2022-74 to assist eligible units of government with meeting their 
water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding in the amount of $970,200 to perform the work detailed in the submitted application, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Washington intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed scope of 
work, and 
 

WHEREAS, the previous resolution accepting these funds 2023-020 contained typographical errors this 
resolution intends to correct. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY,  
 

1. That the County of Washington does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of $970,200. 
 

2. That the County of Washington does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be adhered to. 

 
3. That Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with this 
project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be 
required by the Division of Water Infrastructure. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023 at Plymouth, North Carolina. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 Page 1  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 PLYMOUTH, 

NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-024 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING SEPTEMBER 2023 AS “PREPAREDNESS 
MONTH” IN WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, National Preparedness Month is an observance each September to raise awareness 

about the importance of preparing for disasters and emergencies that could happen at any time; and 
 

WHEREAS, Counties throughout North Carolina have been affected by a variety of emergencies, 
including mudslides, wildfires, flooding, earthquakes, and the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 

WHEREAS, the peak period of hurricane season is historically mid-August through October, and 
September 10 marks the peak of hurricane season; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2023 theme of National Preparedness Month is “Preparing For Older Adults”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County has 27.4% of adults over the age of 65; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners desires that every household, property 

owner, and business in Washington County be prepared for potential emergencies. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Washington County 
hereby declares September 2023 as Preparedness Month in Washington County and encourages all 
citizens to provide for and assist with “Preparing for Older Adults” by developing an emergency plan, 
building an emergency kit, and communicating their emergency plan to all members of their household 
and/or workplace.  
 
Adopted this the 5th day of September, 2023. 

 
__________________________________________ 

         Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioner 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________            (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 Page 1  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 PLYMOUTH, 

NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-025 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE ERECTION OF A  
HISTORICAL MARKER AT MACKEY’S 

 
WHEREAS, the Albemarle Sound Railroad Bridge was completed in 1910; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 5.05-mile bridge was considered the longest railroad bridge over navigable 

waters in the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is a major engineering feat in the south; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the bridge connected Mackey’s Ferry to Edenton; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it provided rail service from Raleigh, to the Norfolk, Virigina seaports. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Washington County Board of 

Commissioners supports the request that the North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural 
Resources erect a historical marker at the end of the state maintenance of Mackey’s Ferry Road 
(SR 1322) in Washington County. 

 
Adopted this the 5th day of September 2023. 

 
__________________________________________ 

         Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioner 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________            (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org












































Washington County Executive Committee Members
Office Last Name First Name Street Address/P.O. Box City State Zip Phone E-mail Committee Assignments

VP Horton Paulique 992 St Davids Road Creswell NC 27928 252-619-3504 hortonfinancialservices@gmail.com VP 6th Year
Gill Ruffin 112 Longleaf Lane Plymouth NC 27962 252-741-1173 ruffin.gill@gmail.com Finance

Spruill Syble P. O Box 277 Creswell NC 27928 252-797-4386 rayandsyble@embarqmail.com Road Sides & Parks
SAA/Past PresidentCotton-West Kim 7580 Long Ridge Road Plymouth NC 27962 919-971-5828 kimcottenwest@gmail.com Rules

Moulden Denise 177 Old Roper Road Loop Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-3688 neecee32353@yahoo.com Rules
Brabble Knapp 1069 Airport Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-9801 kbrabble@washconc.org Airports

Albem. RPO Welsh Angela M. 512 South Church Street Hertford NC 27944 252-426-5775 awelsh@albemarlecommission.org
SAA/PP Manning Buster 6414 NC 99 South Pantego NC 27860 252-935-5307 manningfarms@gotricounty.com Past President

Lewis Lunetta 849 NC Highway 45 North Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9020 Publicity
Fleming Nellie Ann P.O. Box 322 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5357 Marketing/Communications

Norman Rona
307 Buncombe Street Roper, PO 

Box 302,  Edenton NC 27932 252-301-0166 History
Norman Norvilla 112A Somerset Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-506-2608 Roads & Bridges
Chesson Carolyn 119B Albermarle Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2041 Roads & Bridges
Franklin Deborah 5439 Mackeys Road Roper NC 27962 252-505-6220 Publicity

SAA President Phelps Carol 2250 Mt. Tabor Road Creswell NC 27928 County Commissioner
Walker Julius PO Box 358 Roper NC 27970 County Commissioner
Johnson Tracey 312 East 3rd Street Plymouth NC 27962 County Commissioner

Keyes Ann 152 Gee Street Plymouth NC 27962 County Commissioner
Spruill John 2542 West Mill Pond Road Roper NC 27970 County Commissioner
Potter Curtis Po Box 1007 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5823 County Manager/Attorney
Roth Brian 124 East Water Street Plymouth NC 27962 Mayor of Plymouth

Blount Denise PO Box 217 Roper NC 27970 Mayor of Roper
Blount Edwin (Ray) PO Box 123 Creswell NC 27928 Mayor of Creswell
Esolen Timothy P.O. Box 1007 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2325 Register of Deeds

Davenport Sam 110 Rabbit Cross Road Creswell NC 27928 Citizen
Owens Sharon 2726 Old Cherry Road Creswell NC 27928 252-394-0666 Citizen

Swindell Lance 205 East Main Street Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114 Emergency Manager 
Pittman Allen 205 East Main Street Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114 Planning/Safety/inspections
Logan Brenda PO Box 183 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-6057 Creswell Town Commissioner

Ambrose Ron PO Box 224 Creswell NC 27928 Creswell Town Commissioner
Pledger Cora PO Box 91 Creswell NC 27928 252-217-0365 Citizen
Webb Jack (James) 1252 Jones White Road Roper NC 27970 252-741-0042 Citizen

Harrison Tom PO Box 706 Plymouth NC 27962 Travel & Tourism
Alexander Joyce PO Box 104 Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5083 Citizen

Sawyer Tim 84 Spruill Town Road Creswell NC 27928 252-796 Tyrrell Co. DOT Employee
Chesson Carolyn 119B Albermarle Road Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2041 Citizen
Sheftall Audrey 2472 US Highway 64 Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5844 Citizen

Littlejohn Betty PO Box 208 Roper NC 27970 252-793-9686 Citizen
Phelps Cole 2046 Weston Road Creswell NC 27928 Citizen/Former County Commissioner
Wilkins Clinton PO Box 568 Roper NC 27970 252-217-7384 Citizen
McCobb Roger 10212 NC Highway 32 North Roper NC 27970 252-799-7360 Citizen
Wallace Frances 16 Swain Road Roper NC 27970 252-741-0336 Citizen
Spruill Lessie PO Box 353 Creswell NC 27928 Citizen

Norman Arlo 15672 NC Highway 94 North Roper NC 27970 Deputy 
Barnes Johnny PO Box 969 Plymouth NC 27962 Washington County Sheriff

Norman Bernard 82 Sunrise Lane Plymouth NC 27962 Citizen
Sanders Bunny PO Box 357 Roper NC 27970 Former Mayor of Roper
Sexton Bill 125 Sexton Farm Plymouth NC 27962 Former County Commissioner
Cayton Guy 99 Ferris Drive Roper NC 27970 Washington County Sheriff Dept
White Harry 3078 NC Highway 45S Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9121 Retired Maps/GIS

Alexander Jean PO Box 295 Creswell NC 27928 Former County Commissioner



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Chair Walker 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Chair Walker will make a presentation to the Employee of the Quarter. The Employee of 
the Quarter will receive a Certificate and a check for $50 and be recognized on the 
Employee Recognition Board in the County’s Administrative Building. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:      Brief Report from Congressman Davis’ Office to Washington County, Mr. 

Chris Hardee, Regional Director 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Chris Hardee, Regional Director from Congressman Davis’ officed will give a brief 
report to the Board. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Opioid Spending Update:  Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department 

Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
                Guidance on technical compliance with the Opioid Settlement MOA and 
related accounting/budgeting compliance has recently been updated by the Department of 
Justice, UNC School of Government, and LGC.   

Whereas previously it was considered advisable to budget these funds utilizing a 
separate Grant Project Ordinance, that practice is no longer considered in compliance 
with the recently updated guidance.  Therefore, until any further legislative changes or 
guidance revisions, all settlement funds must now be appropriated via BOTH an 
authorizing Board Resolution, AND budgeted and accounted for as part of the annual 
budget ordinance.   

All settlement funds will still be maintained separately in a special revenue fund 
along with all interest generated from such funds which remains subject to the same 
restrictions as the funds themselves.   

The DOJ and the LGC have also provided assurances that any technical auditing 
issues that are cited in future audits as a result of using a Grant Project Ordinance will not 
be considered material.  It is still necessary to ratify the prior year’s allocation of $5,000 
to the Drug Recovery Court (which was previously authorized by the now non-compliant 
use of a Grant Project Ordinance in order to help resolve potential auditing issues that 
may otherwise arise as a result of this updated guidance.   

 
The attached Resolution accomplishes three distinct goals as follows: 
 

1. It authorizes the $5,000 Drug Recovery Court appropriation for the current fiscal 
year. 

2. It ratifies the $5,000 Drug Recovery Court appropriation for the prior fiscal year 
(previously authorized by a now non-compliant Grant Project Ordinance) 



3. It extends the period to complete the expenditure of the previously 
authorized/allocated $23,6_ from 12/31/23 to 6/30/24 to make it consistent with 
the current fiscal year.  

 
This item also gives the County Board, and any participating municipalities an 
opportunity to learn about and ask questions or provide input on the current and future 
appropriations of the Opioid Settlement Funds. 
 
An enormous amount of additional information and guidance is available at: 
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-
litigation-settlement/ 
 
 
Also below is the email that Mr. Potter sent to the 3 towns Friday afternoon inviting them 
to attend Tuesday night’s meeting to listen and provide any information on this subject. 
 
Dear Town Partners,  
 
I hope you are all well.  I apologize in advance for the very short notice provided by this 
email.  If you are unable to attend or send representatives, please be assured that you will 
not “miss out” on anything.  There is still plenty of time to discuss this topic or provide 
local input as we are still putting the wheels on this new vehicle as it starts to roll out of 
the garage and onto the highway. 
 
That said, I wanted to extend an invitation to all of you, or your representatives to attend 
our regularly scheduled Board meeting this coming Tuesday evening at 6PM in the Board 
of Commissioners Room in Plymouth, NC in order to listen and provide any input or 
feedback you may have for our plans to start expending some of the opioid settlement 
funding that we have started receiving this past year. 
 
You may already know that these funds are heavily restricted and intensely regulated to 
specific uses according to a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) created by the Attorney 
General of NC and signed onto by each County.   
 

- Thus far, Washington County along with Tyrrell and Mar�n have discussed and are 
essen�ally deferring to our regional MTW Health Department to lead our three coun�es 
collec�vely in terms of reviewing and sugges�ng the best way to expend these funds 
according to their restric�ons.  MTW is s�ll in the early stages of planning for how to 
best recommend these funds be spent.  Thus far, the County has only spent $5k each 
year on the 2nd Judicial District Recovery Court, and about $26,000 on a 
naloxone/syringe service harm reduc�on project. 
 

- One aspect of the MOU that many coun�es are only just now realizing, is that it requires 
each County to conduct an annual mee�ng with its Towns to receive input on the 
intended use of these funds. 
 

https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/


- To be completely transparent, our first compliance report to the State is due in late 
September, and for that reason, along with the fact that Wes Gray will be on hand 
Tuesday night to discuss this topic (which was not planned un�l the last 48 hours) I am 
extending this invita�on to all of you in order to treat Tuesday night technically as the 
mee�ng required by the MOA.   

o That said, I want to stress that we as the County, are en�rely open to mee�ng 
with any or all of you at any later more convenient date of your choosing to 
discuss this topic in more detail. 

o You may also be aware that the County recently embarked upon a mission to 
meet more frequently with each of our Town partners to discuss areas of 
mutual interest, concern, and collabora�on.  I think those mee�ngs (we just had 
our first with the Town of Plymouth and expect to schedule the first with Roper 
and Creswell shortly) would also serve as a great opportunity to discuss this 
topic in more detail. 

o Given the centralized role of MTW in this process, it is also highly likely that the 
three coun�es may work with MTW to facilitate a regional mee�ng from �me to 
�me to collaborate on strategies and to meet the annual mee�ng requirement 
in a more efficient and effec�ve manner. 

 
I am attaching some materials that will give you an idea of the total value of all funds 
over the lifespan of the currently existing settlement terms, as well as what specific uses 
these funds can potentially be put towards.  Below I am pasting a link to an enormous 
amount of information pertaining to this topics maintained on the NCACC’s website. 
 
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-
litigation-settlement/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/


2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039

$62,428

$21,250

Payments	Over	Time	-	Washington

0K 10K 20K 30K 40K 50K 60K 70K 80K 90K 100K 110K 120K 130K

Amount

FY22-23
FY23-24
FY24-25
FY25-26
FY26-27
FY27-28
FY28-29
FY29-30
FY30-31
FY31-32
FY32-33
FY33-34
FY34-35
FY35-36
FY36-37
FY37-38
FY38-39

$62,428

$118,995

$62,712

$69,814

$54,749

$54,718

$58,282

$60,625

$53,804

$49,766

$45,565

$35,586

$35,586

$35,586

$29,422

$21,250

$21,250

Payment	Table	-	Washington

Download	Local
Payout	Schedule:

Choose	a	Place:

Download	Payouts
for	All	Locations:

Washington

Last	Modified:
June	2023

$870,139

18	Year	Payment	to	Washington	during	2022-2038:

Distributors
$617,696,776

J&J/Janssen
$141,429,670Mallinckrodt

$4,972,886

CVS
$155,102,328

Walgreens
$168,694,379

Teva
$127,230,014

Walmart
$87,839,408

Allergan
$70,095,890

Mallinckrodt
$4,972,886

Total	NC	Payments	by	Settlement

Past	FY	Payments	(Completed)
Future	FY	Payments	(Anticipated)
Current	FY	Payments	(In	Progress)

Wave	2

Wave	1

Bankruptcies



EXHIBIT A TO NC MOA: 
HIGH-IMPACT OPIOID ABATEMENT STRATEGIES (“OPTION A” List) 

 
In keeping with the National Settlement Agreement, opioid settlement funds may support 
programs or services listed below that serve persons with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or any co-
occurring Substance Use Disorder (SUD) or mental health condition.   
 
As used in this list, the words “fund” and “support” are used interchangeably and mean to create, 
expand, or sustain a program, service, or activity. 
 

1. Collaborative strategic planning.  Support collaborative strategic planning to address 

opioid misuse, addiction, overdose, or related issues, including staff support, facilitation 

services, or any activity or combination of activities listed in Exhibit C to the MOA 

(collaborative strategic planning). 

2. Evidence-based addiction treatment.  Support evidence-based addiction treatment 

consistent with the American Society of Addiction Medicine’s national practice guidelines 

for the treatment of opioid use disorder – including Medication-Assisted Treatment 

(MAT) with any medication approved for this purpose by the U.S. Food and Drug 

Administration – through Opioid Treatment Programs, qualified providers of Office-Based 

Opioid Treatment, Federally Qualified Health Centers, treatment offered in conjunction 

with justice system programs, or other community-based programs offering evidence-

based addiction treatment.  This may include capital expenditures for facilities that offer 

evidence-based treatment for OUD.  (If only a portion of a facility offers such treatment, 

then only that portion qualifies for funding, on a pro rata basis.)   

3. Recovery support services.  Fund evidence-based recovery support services, including 

peer support specialists or care navigators based in local health departments, social 

service offices, detention facilities, community-based organizations, or other settings that 

support people in treatment or recovery, or people who use drugs, in accessing addiction 

treatment, recovery support, harm reduction services, primary healthcare, or other 

services or supports they need to improve their health or well-being. 

4. Recovery housing support.  Fund programs offering recovery housing support to people 

in treatment or recovery, or people who use drugs, such as assistance with rent, move-in 

deposits, or utilities; or fund recovery housing programs that provide housing to 

individuals receiving Medication-Assisted Treatment for opioid use disorder. 

5. Employment-related services.  Fund programs offering employment support services to 

people in treatment or recovery, or people who use drugs, such as job training, job skills, 

job placement, interview coaching, resume review, professional attire, relevant courses 

at community colleges or vocational schools, transportation services or transportation 

vouchers to facilitate any of these activities, or similar services or supports. 

6. Early intervention.  Fund programs, services, or training to encourage early identification 

and intervention for children or adolescents who may be struggling with problematic use 

of drugs or mental health conditions, including Youth Mental Health First Aid, peer-based 



programs, or similar approaches.  Training programs may target parents, family 

members, caregivers, teachers, school staff, peers, neighbors, health or human services 

professionals, or others in contact with children or adolescents. 

7. Naloxone distribution.  Support programs or organizations that distribute naloxone to 

persons at risk of overdose or their social networks, such as Syringe Service Programs, 

post-overdose response teams, programs that provide naloxone to persons upon release 

from jail or prison, emergency medical service providers or hospital emergency 

departments that provide naloxone to persons at risk of overdose, or community-based 

organizations that provide services to people who use drugs.  Programs or organizations 

involved in community distribution of naloxone may, in addition, provide naloxone to first 

responders. 

8. Post-overdose response team.  Support post-overdose response teams that connect 

persons who have experienced non-fatal drug overdoses to addiction treatment, 

recovery support, harm reduction services, primary healthcare, or other services or 

supports they need to improve their health or well-being. 

9. Syringe Service Program.  Support Syringe Service Programs operated by any 

governmental or nongovernmental organization authorized by section 90-113.27 of the 

North Carolina General Statutes that provide syringes, naloxone, or other harm reduction 

supplies; that dispose of used syringes; that connect clients to prevention, treatment, 

recovery support, behavioral healthcare, primary healthcare, or other services or 

supports they need; or that provide any of these services or supports. 

10. Criminal justice diversion programs.  Support pre-arrest or post-arrest diversion 

programs, or pre-trial service programs, that connect individuals involved or at risk of 

becoming involved in the criminal justice system to addiction treatment, recovery 

support, harm reduction services, primary healthcare, prevention, or other services or 

supports they need, or that provide any of these services or supports. 

11. Addiction treatment for incarcerated persons.  Support evidence-based addiction 

treatment, including Medication-Assisted Treatment with at least one FDA-approved 

opioid agonist, to persons who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

12. Reentry Programs.  Support programs that connect incarcerated persons to addiction 

treatment, recovery support, harm reduction services, primary healthcare, or other 

services or supports they need upon release from jail or prison, or that provide any of 

these services or supports. 





 Page 1  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 PLYMOUTH, 

NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-026 
 

TO DIRECT THE EXPENDITURE OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS  
 

 
WHEREAS Washington County has joined national settlement agreements with companies engaged 

in the manufacturing, distribution, and dispensing of opioids. 
 

WHEREAS the allocation, use, and reporting of funds stemming from these national settlement 
agreements and bankruptcy resolutions (“Opioid Settlement Funds”) are governed by the Memorandum of 
Agreement Between the State of North Carolina and Local Governments on Proceeds Relating to the 
Settlement of Opioid Litigation (“MOA”) and the Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds from 
Additional Settlements of Opioid Litigation (“SAAF”); 
 

WHEREAS Washington County has received Opioid Settlement Funds pursuant to these national 
settlement agreements and deposited the Opioid Settlement Funds in a separate special revenue fund as 
required by section D of the MOA; 
 

WHEREAS section E.6 of the MOA states that, before spending opioid settlement funds, the local 
government’s governing body must adopt a resolution that:  

(i) indicates that it is an authorization for expenditure of opioid settlement funds; and,  
(ii) states the specific strategy or strategies the county or municipality intends to fund pursuant 

to Option A or Option B, using the item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to 
identify each funded strategy; and,  

(iii) states the amount dedicated to each strategy for a specific period of time. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, in alignment with the NC MOA and SAAF, Washington County 
authorizes the expenditure of opioid settlement funds as follows: 
 
1. First strategy authorized: 

a. Name of strategy: Criminal Justice Diversion Programs 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 10 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date July 1, 2023 through End date June 30, 2024 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 Page 2  

f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help fund the 
Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded Drug Recovery Court 
Program 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 
2. Second strategy authorized: 

a. Name of strategy: Criminal Justice Diversion Programs 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 10 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date July 1, 2022 through End date June 30, 2023* 
*The expenditure of this sum during the prior fiscal year/period stated above (as previously 
authorized in a Project Grant Ordinance adopted on or about June 6, 2022) is hereby re-
approved and ratified by the Board to the extent required by law to comply with recently 
issued DOJ/LGC Guidance concerning the use of Project Grant Ordinances to account for 
and expend opioid settlement funds. 

 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help fund the 

Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded Drug Recovery Court 
Program 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

3. Third authorized strategy 
a. Name of strategy: Naloxone Distribution/Syringe Service Program 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 7 & 9 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $21,230.19 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date January 1, 2023 through End date June 30, 2024* 
 

*This strategy/appropriation was previously authorized by the Board via Resolution 2023-
008.  This resolution shall be deemed to amend and extend the original period of time 
provided for completing this strategy from 12/31/23 to the later date stated above.  

 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help fund the 

Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department “Hope Exchange” harm reduction program 
as outlined in a request letter to Washington County from Miranda Keel, Health Education 
Supervisor, dated 8/29/23 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

The total dollar amount of Opioid Settlement Funds appropriated across the above named and authorized 
strategies is $5,000.00 for FYE June 30, 2023; and $26,230.19 for FYE June 30, 2024.  
 

Adopted this the 5th day of September 2023. 
 

__________________________________________ 
         Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioner 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________            (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   6 
 
       DATE:    September 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing—Riverlight Transit Administration Grant Application, 

Ms. Kim Blevins, DSS, Riverlight Transit Supervisor 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Blevins will speak to the Board on the abovementioned subject and asking for the 
Boards approval to move forward with submitting the Admin grant application for 
Riverlight Transit. A public hearing is required.  The forms and the Admin Grant for 
FY25 are attached.  We will not be doing the Capital Grant for FY25 as we have no other 
vehicles that have reached the threshold of 100,000 miles as of 06/30/2023. 
 

































 
 
 

FY 2025 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 
 
 
This is to inform the public that a public hearing will be held on the proposed Fiscal Year 2025 Community 
Transportation Program Application to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
no later than Oct. 6, 2023. The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, September 5, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
before the (governing board) Washington County Board of Commissioners at 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC 27962.  
 
Those interested in attending the public hearing and needing either auxiliary aids and services under the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or a language translator should contact Clifton Hardison on or 
before September 5, 2023, at telephone number 252-793-4041, ext. 205 or via email at 
cliftonh@wcchs.org. 
 
The Community Transportation Program provides assistance to coordinate existing transportation 
programs operating in Washington County as well as provides transportation options and services for the 
communities within this service area.  These services are currently provided using a minivan and light 
transit vehicles.  Services are rendered by Washington County dba Riverlight Transit. 

The total estimated amount requested for the period July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 

 
NOTE: Local share amount is subject to State funding availability. 

Project Total Amount Local Share  

Administrative 
 

$ 105,768 $ 15,865 (15%) 

Operating (5311) 
 

$       $       (50%) 

Capital (Vehicles & Other) 
 

$       $       (10%) 

5310 Operating 
 

$       $       (50%) 

Other ___________________ 
 

$       $       (    %) 

TOTAL PROJECT $ 105,768 $ 15,865 
 
 

 

Total Funding Request Total Local Share 
 
This application may be inspected at Washington County Department of Social Services from 8:30 AM-
5:00 PM.  Written comments should be directed to Clifton Hardison or Lynn Swett before September 5, 
2023.   
 
 

End of Notice  
 

 
Note:  AN ORIGINAL COPY of the published Public Hearing Notice must be attached to a signed 
Affidavit of Publication.  Both the Public Hearing Notice and the Affidavit of Publication must be 
submitted with the grant application. 



 
  
 

 
FY 2025 PROGRAM RESOLUTION  Page 1 of 2 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM RESOLUTION 
 

FY 2025 RESOLUTION 
 

Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or 
combination thereof. 

 
 
Applicant seeking permission to apply for Public Transportation Program funding, enter into 
agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation, provide the necessary 
assurances and the required local match. 
 
A motion was made by (Board Member’s Name)       and seconded by (Board Member’s 
Name or N/A, if not required)       for the adoption of the following resolution, and upon being 
put to a vote was duly adopted. 
 

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the 
Governor of North Carolina have designated the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) as the agency responsible for administering federal and state 
public transportation funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from 
the US Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds 
from the North Carolina General Assembly to provide assistance for rural public 
transportation projects; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local 

agencies for the provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services 
consistent with the policy requirements of each funding source for planning, community 
and agency involvement, service design, service alternatives, training and conference 
participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and alcohol testing policy and 
program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated costs 
analysis); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital 

funds and will have different percentages of federal, state, and local funds. 
 
 WHEREAS, non-Community Transportation applicants may apply for funding for 

“purchase-of-service” projects under the Capital Purchase of Service budget, Section 
5310 program. 

 
WHEREAS, (Legal Name of Applicant)  Washington County dba Riverlight Transit 
hereby assures and certifies that it will provide the required local matching funds; that its 
staff has the technical capacity to implement and manage the project(s), prepare 
required reports, obtain required training, attend meetings and conferences; and agrees 
to comply with the federal and state statutes, regulations, executive orders, Section 5333 
(b) Warranty, and all administrative requirements related to the applications made to and 



 
  
 

 
FY 2025 PROGRAM RESOLUTION  Page 2 of 2 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

grants received from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the provisions of 
Section 1001 of Title 18, U. S. C. 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to 
the State of North Carolina required for the project;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the (Authorized Official’s Title)* County 
Manager of (Name of Applicant’s Governing Body)  Washington County is hereby 
authorized to submit grant application (s) for federal and state funding in response to 
NCDOT’s calls for projects, make the necessary assurances and certifications and be 
empowered to enter into an agreement with the NCDOT to provide rural, small urban, 
and urban public transportation services. 
 

I (Certifying Official’s Name)*        (Certifying Official’s Title)        do hereby certify that the 
above is a true and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes of a meeting of the (Name of 
Applicant’s Governing Board)       duly held on the       day of      ,      . 
  
 
 

Signature of Certifying Official 
 
*Note that the authorized official, certifying official, and notary public should be three 
separate individuals. 
 
 
Seal Subscribed and sworn to me 
(date)  

 

 
 
Notary Public * 

 
 

Printed Name and Address  
 

 
My commission expires 
(date)  

 

 

Affix Notary Seal Here 



 
 
 

FY 2025 PUBLIC HEARING RECORD 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

PUBLIC HEARING RECORD 
 
Important – A public hearing MUST be conducted whether or not requested by the Public. 
 
Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination 
thereof. 

 
APPLICANT: Washington County 
  
DATE:  September 5, 2023 
  
PLACE: Board of Commissioners Room, 116 Adams St., Plymouth, NC 27962 
  
TIME:  6:00 PM 
  
How many BOARD MEMBERS attended the public hearing?       
  
How many members of the PUBLIC attended the public hearing?          

 
Public Attendance Surveys  
 

        (Attached)   
 
        (Offered at Public Hearing but none completed) 

 
 
I, the undersigned, representing (Legal Name of Applicant) Washington County dba 
Riverlight Transit do hereby certify to the North Carolina Department of Transportation, that a 
Public Hearing was held as indicated above and  
 
During the Public Hearing  
 

        (NO public comments)   
 
        (Public Comments were made and meeting minutes 
  will be submitted after board approval) 
              

The estimated date for board approval of meeting minutes is:       
                

 
 Signature or Clerk to the Board 
 
      
Printed Name and Title 
 
      
Date 

Affix Seal Here 



 
  
 

FY 2025 VOLUNTARY TITLE VI PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

VOLUNTARY TITLE VI PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NC DOT) to gather statistical data regarding participants and 
beneficiaries of the agency’s federal-aid programs and activities.   NC DOT collects 
information on race, color, national origin and gender of the attendees to this public 
meeting to ensure the inclusion of all segments of the population impacted by a proposed 
project. 
 
 NCDOT wishes to clarify that this information gathering process is completely 
voluntary and that you are not required to disclose the statistical data requested to 
participate in this meeting.  This form is a public document used to collect data, only. 
 
The completed forms will be held on file at the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation.  For Further information regarding this process please contact the 
NCDOT Title VI Program at telephone number 919.508.1808 or email at 
titlevi@ncdot.gov. 
 

 
 

After completing this form, please fold and place it inside the designated box on the 
registration table. 

 
Thank you for your cooperation. 

 
 
 

Project Name:    FY2025 Grant Application         Date:  09/05/2023 
Meeting Location:  Board of Commissioners Room, 116 Adams St., Plymouth, NC 
27962 
Name (please print) 
 
 
 

Gender: 
 

  Male       Female 

General ethnic identification categories (check one) 

  Caucasian   Hispanic American   American Indian/Alaskan Native 
  African 

American 
  Asian/Pacific Islander Other:  

________________________ 
Color:   National Origin: 

mailto:titlevi@ncdot.gov


 
 

 

FY 2025 LOCAL SHARE CERTIFICATION FOR FUNDING  Page 1 of 2 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

FY 2025 LOCAL SHARE CERTIFICATION FOR FUNDING  
 

Washington County dba Riverlight Transit 
                                            (Legal Name of Applicant) 

 
Requested Funding Amounts 
 

Project       Total Amount  Local Share** 
5311 Administrative      $ 105,768   $ 15,865 (15%) 
5311 Operating (No State Match)      $         $       (50%) 
5310 Operating (No State Match)     $         $       (50%) 

    Combined Capital    $           $       (10%)  
Mobility Management       $         $       (50%) 
5310 Capital Purchase of Service      $         $       (10%) 
ConCPT         $         $       (50%) 
Capital Cost of Contracting      $         $       (    %) 
Traveler’s Aid        $         $       (50%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
 
Funding programs covered are 5311, 5310, 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities, 5307 (Small fixed 
route, regional, and consolidated urban-rural systems)                               

                 
      TOTAL                                                         $ 105,768                                $ 15,865 

       Total Funding Requests      Total Local Share 
 
**NOTE: Applicants should be prepared for the entire Local Share amount in the event 
State funding is not available. 
 
The Local Share is available from the following sources: 
 
    Source of Funds      Apply to Grant                Amount  

 General Funds              $ 15,865 
 
                                         $       
 
                                          $       
 
                                          $       
 
                                           $       
 

                                         $       



 
 

 

FY 2025 LOCAL SHARE CERTIFICATION FOR FUNDING  Page 2 of 2 
Last Updated: 04/03/2023 

                                         $       
 

                                          $       
 
 

TOTAL                                                    $ 15,865 
 
** Fare box revenue is not an applicable source for local share funding 
 
 
 
 
I, the undersigned representing (Legal Name of Applicant) Washington County dba Riverlight 
Transit do hereby certify to the North Carolina Department of Transportation, that the required 
local funds for the FY2025 Community Transportation Program and 5307 Governors 
Apportionment will be available as of July 1, 2024, which has a period of performance of July 1, 
2024 – June 30, 2025. 
 

_________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Official 
 
Curtis S. Potter/ County Manager 
Type Name and Title of Authorized Official 
 
      
Date 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:      Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing---Special Use Permit, Mr. Allen Pittman, 

Planning/Inspections 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Planning Board received a Special Permit Use application for the construction of a 
cell tower at 10180 NC Hwy 32 South in Plymouth. The Planning Board held a public 
hearing and approved the Special Permit Use application with no conditions and now it 
requires a hearing by the Commissioners for your approval. Tonight is that hearing and 
instructions for the quasi-judicial hearing are attached along with pertinent 
documentation.  (See attached.) 
 
 
 
 
 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 1 of 6 

Procedures for Quasi-Judicial Hearing for  

Special Use Permit (“SUP”): 

I. MOTION to go into Public Hearing to hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the following case: 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION filed by Jonathan L. Yates Attorney/Agent on 
behalf of TowerCom on 6/29/23  seeking a Special Use Permit pursuant to Article 3A, 
Subsection C(L) of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance to: build a proposed 280’ 
guyed-style wireless communication tower on property located off NC Hwy 32S, 
Plymouth NC 27962 (PIN: 6762.00-86-2031 by TowerCom and Verizon Wireless. 

 
II. INSTRUCTION RE QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURE (Attorney/Planning Director)  

 
1. Special Use Permits are governed by NCGS 160D and Article 5 of the Washington County 

Zoning Ordinance.  NCGS 160D-406 and 160D-705 require the use of quasi-judicial 
procedures during public hearings held to consider such matters. 
 

2. Quasi-judicial proceedings are different than other public hearings in that not everyone 
has the right to present evidence before this Board and to become a party to this 
proceeding.   A Quasi-judicial proceeding is much like a court proceeding where an 
individual’s rights and interests are being decided under specific rules of procedure.  
Parties to this case have the right to present evidence and cross examine witnesses. The 
burden of proof in these cases typically lies with the Applicant.   The extent to which the 
Rules of Evidence used in courts apply is up to the discretion of the Board.  
 

3. Only those who can demonstrate that they will be affected by the outcome of the 
hearing may become parties. After a description of the person’s interest in this case, the 
Board will determine whether they will be allowed to present evidence as a party. 
Please note, you do not have to be a party to testify if someone who is a party calls you 
as a witness.  All parties and witnesses who intend to present evidence or testify before 
this Board must be sworn in.  
 

4. As a quasi-judicial hearing, by law it must adhere to certain procedures, as there are 
legal standards that must be followed.  To that end please consider the following:  

 
A. The Board must base its decisions only on the evidence presented, including 

testimony given under oath or affirmation by any parties or witnesses called by a 
party. 

B. Please limit testimony to facts relevant to the application and applicable legal 
standards for the Board’s decision, what you know personally; no opinion 
testimony or hearsay.  

C. Parties may cross-examine each testifying party or witness after their testimony if 
there are any questions.  Cross-examination shall be limited to the matters 
testified about during the original testimony. 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 2 of 6 

D. If you want the Board to see written evidence such as reports and maps or 
exhibits, the witness who is familiar with the evidence should ask that it be 
introduced during or at the end of his/her testimony. 

E. In order for the testimony to be considered as evidence used in making the 
decision, it can only be given by persons in attendance at the meeting; otherwise, 
it is considered hearsay. 

 
III. INSTRUCTION RE SPECIFIC REVIEW STANDARDS: (Attorney/Planning director) 

Article 5 of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance is attached in its entirety for your 
reference, with certain excerpts of relevant portions pasted below for convenience: 
 

1. Purpose and Intent:  Special use permits add flexibility to the Zoning Ordinance by 
allowing uses which would otherwise be undesirable to be established in designated 
districts under conditions imposed by the Board of Commissioners. Such permits are 
authorized under the terms of this article to provide for certain uses which cannot be 
well adjusted to their environment in particular locations in Washington County with full 
protection offered to surrounding properties by only the application of the underlying 
zoning district regulations. Further, special permit uses are those uses which, if not 
specially regulated, can have an undue impact on or be incompatible with other uses of 
land within or adjacent to a given zoning district. Based on the recommendation of the 
Planning Board, and upon the granting of a special use permit by the Board of 
Commissioners, these uses may be allowed to be located or expanded within given 
designated zoning districts under the standards, controls, limitations, performance 
criteria, restrictions and other regulations of this article. 
 

2. General Standards and Criteria for Special Use Permit Review: All applications for 
special use permit shall be reviewed using the following criteria:  

 
1. The proposed use shall be:  

a. In harmony with the adopted Land Use Plan and the Growth 
Opportunities Plan;  

b. In harmony with the intent and purpose of the zoning district in which 
the use is proposed to be located and  

c. In harmony with the character of adjacent properties and the 
surrounding neighborhoods and also with existing and proposed 
development.  

2. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public services such as 
streets, drainage facilities, fire protection and public water, and sewer facilities, 
where applicable.  

3. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic importance.  

4. The proposed use shall be designed, sited and landscaped so that the use will not 
hinder or discourage the appropriate development or use of adjacent properties 
and surrounding neighborhoods.  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 3 of 6 

5. The proposed use does not affect adversely the general plans for the physical 
development of the County as embodied in these regulations and in any plan or 
portion thereof adopted by the Planning Board.  

6. The proposed use will not affect adversely the health and safety of residents and 
workers in the County 

7. The proposed use will not be adversely affected by the existing uses.  
8. The proposed use will be placed on a lot of sufficient size to satisfy the space 

requirements of said use.  
9. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard because of the number 

of persons who will attend or use said facility, vehicular movement, noise or fume 
generation or any type of physical activity.  

10. The standards set forth for each particular use for which a permit may be granted 
have been met.  

11. The Planning Board or Board of Commissioners may impose or require such 
additional restrictions and conditions as may be necessary to protect the health 
and safety of workers and residents in the community and to protect the value and 
use of property in the general neighborhood.  

12. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purposes stated for these regulations.  
13. Whenever the Board of Commissioners shall find in the case of any permit granted 

pursuant to the provisions of the regulations that any of the terms, conditions or 
restrictions upon which such permit was granted are not being complied with, said 
Board shall rescind and revoke such permit after giving due notice to all parties 
concerned and granting full opportunity for a public hearing. 

 
3. Special Conditions:  In granting any special use permit, the Board of Commissioners may 

impose any conditions necessary to assure that the proposed use will conform with the 
requirements of this section and will continue to do so. The Board of Commissioners 
may take all necessary actions to ensure compliance with the conditions imposed. 

- Certain specific examples are listed in Article 5(c)(2): 
 

4. Action by Planning Board:  No special use permit shall be approved unless the proposal 
has been reviewed by the Planning Board. The Planning Board shall conduct at least one 
(1) public hearing in accordance with this Ordinance. Following the public hearing, the 
Planning Board shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which may 
include changes in the applicant’s original proposal resulting from the hearing, and shall 
report such recommendations, together with any explanatory material, to the County 
Commissioners. 
 

5. Action by Board of Commissioners:  Before approving a special use permit, the Board of 
Commissioners shall hold at least one (1) public hearing in accordance with this 
Ordinance after which the Board of Commissioners may make appropriate changes to or 
impose appropriate conditions upon the proposed special use. Nothing herein shall 
preclude the Board of Commissioners from holding a joint public hearing with the 
Planning Board.  

A concurring vote of a majority of the members of Board of Commissioners shall 
be required to approve a special use permit. 

__________________________________ 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 4 of 6 

IV. BOARD CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: (Board Chair or designated Speaker)   
It is also important that the members of the Board of Adjustment consider and make 
sure that they do not have any conflicts of interest with serving as a member of the 
decision-making body for purposes of hearing and ruling on this particular case.  
Therefore, the following questions should be considered by each member and any 
potential conflicts should be voiced, discussed, and resolved if possible or otherwise 
result in recusal of any member with such a conflict by the other members of the Board. 

 
1. does any member of this body have any interest in the property or the application, or 

do they own property in close proximity to the subject property;  
2. does any member of this body stand to gain or lose any financial benefit as a result of 

the outcome of this hearing;  
3. does any member of this body feel they cannot hear and consider the application in a 

fair and objective manner;  
4. has any member of this body engaged in any ex parte communications with either 

proponents or opponents of the application, and, if so, I ask you to place on the record 
the substance of any such communications so that interested parties have the 
opportunity at this hearing to rebut the communications. 

5. Are there any members of the audience who wish to challenge on appearance of 
fairness grounds participation in the matter by any member of Council, including the 
reasons for the request? 

 
V. PARTY IDENTIFICATION/WITNESSES/OATH: (Board Clerk) 

At this time we will identify and swear in or affirm all of the parties and witnesses. 
A. Call for and ID Parties- name, address, for/against applicant 
B. Call for and ID Witnesses- name, address, for/against applicant 
C. All parties and witnesses should now stand and/or come forward to be sworn in or to 

affirm the truth of their testimony  [Administer the oath to all those who may testify, as 
a group] If anyone refuses to be sworn (or affirm), then inform them their statements 
must not be treated as evidence on which to base a decision, but merely as arguments] 

 
VI. PRESENTATION OF CASE/EVIDENCE: 

A. County Staff Presentation of Case: County Planning Department staff please come 
forward and describe the application being considered; and share the facts gathered 
and recommendation provided by staff and/or the Planning Board re the application.  
- Planning Department Staff Application Timeline/Summary Info  
- 6/29/23 Cover Letter and Application from Hellman Yates, PA 
- Attached: Land Use Plan Compatibility Statement; Overall Parcel Plan (Survey) by  

David Franklin dated 6/22/23; Property Photographs & Aerial GIS Photo 
- Planning Board Quasi-Judicial Hearing Instructions & Decision Form 8/17/23 
- Planning Board Public Hearing Notice & Supporting Materials/Records 
 
 
 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 5 of 6 

- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 

B. Applicant: The applicant may come forward at this time and present their testimony 
and evidence to support the application if so desired.  Any specific written documents, 
surveys, pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would 
like to have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time.  
- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 

C. Other Legitimate Parties with Material Interest in the Case: (if applicable) may come 
forward at this time and present their testimony and evidence to support or oppose 
the application if so desired at this time.  Any specific written documents, surveys, 
pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would like to 
have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time. 
- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 

D. Closing Statements and/or Rebuttals:  Are there any closing statements or any last 
rebuttal comments from: 
1. Staff 
2. Applicant 
3. Other Legitimate Parties 
 

E. Board Q&A:  Are there any final questions from the Board for any of the parties before 
beginning deliberations on a decision? 

 

  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures v2  Page 6 of 6 

VII. DELIBERATION & DECISION: 

FIRST Review the applicable specific legal standard(s) again in Article 5(B) 
SECOND Collectively identify which facts or specific items of evidence (including 

testimony) were most important to determining whether the proposed special 
use of property met the applicable legal standard(s). 
 

[Specific facts/evidence which impacted your decision should be itemized and 
described briefly below] 

 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 

THIRD Collectively discuss whether any special conditions upon the proposed use of the 
property should be required in order for the applicant’s proposed special use to 
meet or better satisfy the applicable legal standard(s).  
 

[Specific conditions, if any, should be itemized and described briefly below] 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

FOURTH 
 

VOTE:  After careful and deliberate consideration of all the relevant facts and 
evidence presented in this matter, if you believe that the applicant: 

 APPROVE 
or 

Generally met the applicable legal 
standards (or would meet them under 
certain conditions) 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE PERMIT* 
*(if applicable, describe any 
conditions in the motion)             or 

 DENY Generally does NOT meet the applicable 
legal standards (or would not meet them 
even under certain conditions) 

MOVE TO DENY THE PERMIT 
 
 

Unless otherwise directed, staff will prepare a written order within five (5) business days reflecting the 
relevant findings of fact, conclusions of law, and final decision of the Board in this hearing.  The Clerk 
shall circulate a draft for signature approval by a majority of the Board members voting in this matter 
to grant or deny the permit.  After receiving enough signatures, the Order shall be certified and 
entered in the Board’s records as its “Final Order” in this matter.  The Clerk shall provide notices 
thereof as required by applicable law. 

VIII. MOTION TO ADJOURN THE PUBLIC HEARING 



















































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Local Option Sales Tax Referendum,  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
                The Board requested information at tonight’s meeting to discuss putting the 
Local Option Sale Tax Referendum on the ballot again in 2024. 
 
Please see attached documentation. 



Agenda Item Memo Page 1 of 2 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823  

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: September 5th, 2023 MEMO Date: August 30th, 2023 
SUBJECT: ¼ Cent Local Option Sales Tax Referendum 
DEPARTMENT: Manager’s Office/Finance/Tax 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- NCACC Local Option Sales Tax Referenda Map (1pg) Info (1pg) & Referendum History (1pg)
B- NCACC FAQ on local option sales tax (4pgs)
C- Resolution Calling for a Special Advisory Referendum… To Be Held On: March 5th, 2024

PURPOSE:  To adopt a resolution directing the Washington County Board of Elections to hold a Special 
Referendum during the upcoming 2024 Primary Election set for March 5th, 2024 to authorize Washington County 
to levy an additional ¼ cent local option sales tax per NCGS 105-537. 

BACKGROUND:  In recent years (2016, 2018, & 2020) Washington County along with multiple other 
jurisdictions (as shown in the attached spreadsheet from the NCGA Fiscal Research Division dated 1/1/23) held 
referendum votes seeking voter approval of the authority to levy an additional ¼ cent local option sales tax per 
NCGS 105-537.   

During the budget planning workshop in January 2023, staff brought this referenda back before the Board 
for discussion in anticipation of needing to generate additional revenues to potentially offset anticipated rising debt 
service expenses associated with the construction of a new consolidated PK12 School.  During the FY24 budget 
approval process the Board further discussed the potential need to consider an ad valorem tax increase by 2024 
unless additional revenues (such as those that would be generated by this local sales tax) could be found and used. 

After further discussion in the 8/7/23 Board meeting, staff were directed to immediately prepare a 
resolution for the Board consideration to authorize holding another referendum ahead of the March 2024 
primary election filing deadlines, and to provide as much time as possible for staff to prepare and distribute 
information to the citizens about the potential impacts of this local sales tax if approved.   

ANALYSIS:  If adopted the ¼ cent Local Option Sales Tax is presently estimated to generate approximately 
$340,000 in additional revenue which is equivalent to the revenue generated by approximately 3.5 cents of the ad 
valorem tax rate at current projections and collections estimates. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Agenda Item Memo Page 2 of 2 

The Board cannot hold a special referendum election on this matter (the statutory authority to do so was 
modified some years ago) and cannot hold a referendum during the general election if one is held in the primary 
and fails. 

Despite the failure of the three previously held referendum votes, staff believes voters have slowly been 
gaining a better understanding about the actual local impacts of approving or not approving a ¼ cent local option 
sales tax.  Staff believes voters may consider approving the tax in a 2024 referendum if further educational outreach 
about the impacts is provided.   

Staff believes seeking voter approval for the authority to levy the additional ¼ cent optional sales tax in the 
2024 primary election represents one of the best and only possible sources of obtaining additional revenues to 
address the anticipated budgetary shortfalls associated with covering the debt service for the new consolidated PK12 
School.  As discussed in the FY24 Budget Message to the Board, failure to secure such additional revenues will 
likely lead to a potential ad-valorem tax increase by 2024.   

Even if other additional revenues (such as grant funding or state budgetary appropriations which are being 
pursued simultaneously) are secured to address the specific budgetary shortfall concern associated with the PK12 
School debt service, staff would still recommend pursuing the referendum due to the valuable economic 
development and public service opportunities which cannot otherwise be pursued without the additional revenues 
which the adoption of the local option sales tax would bring to Washington County. 

 Placing a referendum on the 3/5/24 Primary permits this matter to be decided before the preparation of the 
FY25 budget in May of 2024.  The passage or failure of the referendum could be a critical component for setting 
the eventual ad valorem tax rate for FY25.  Alternatively the Board could choose to hold the referendum during the 
larger 11/5/24 general election, but would practically be unable to rely upon its passage or the potential revenues to 
be generated therefrom during the balancing process of the FY25 budget which must be approved by June of 2024.  

Additional information is contained within the attachments to this MEMO. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: SUBSTANTIAL - If adopted the Local Option Sales Tax is estimated to generate 
approximately $340,000 in additional revenues which is equivalent to the revenue generated by approximately 3.5 
cents of the ad valorem tax rate. 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
1. Discuss any specific uses to which the additional revenues generated from the tax are intended to be

applied by the Board, which may impact the content of the educational campaign materials referred to in
the suggested motion below.

Staff recommends considering the use of such funds be earmarked for EMS System Stabilization, 
School Capital Debt Service, Economic Development, or otherwise to use such funds to attempt 
to avoid needing to consider any further raises in the ad valorem tax rate in the wake of any 
substantial loss to other tax revenues or substantial increases to other expenses.  

2. MOTION: To approve the attached Resolution directing the Washington
County Board of Elections to hold a referendum on the ¼ cent Local Option
Sales Tax during the March 5, 2024 primary elections, and direct staff to
prepare an educational campaign regarding such referendum.







County Referenda County Referenda County Referenda County Referenda
Alamance  Cumberland  Johnston  Randolph 
Alexander  Currituck  None Jones  Richmond 
Alleghany  Dare  None Lee  Robeson 
Anson  Davidson  Lenoir  Rockingham 
Ashe  Davie  Lincoln  Rowan 
Avery  Duplin  Macon  Rutherford 
Beaufort  None Durham  Madison  Sampson 
Bertie  Edgecombe  Martin  Scotland 
Bladen  Forsyth  McDowell  Stanly 
Brunswick  Franklin  None Mecklenburg  Stokes 
Buncombe  Gaston  Mitchell  Surry 
Burke  Gates  None Montgomery  Swain 
Cabarrus  Graham  Moore  Transylvania  None
Caldwell  Granville  None Nash  Tyrrell  None
Camden  None Greene  New Hanover  Union  None
Carteret  Guilford  Northampton  None Vance  None
Caswell  Halifax  Onslow  Wake  None
Catawba  Harnett  Orange  Warren  None
Chatham  Haywood  Pamlico  None Washington 
Cherokee  Henderson  Pasquotank  Watauga 
Chowan  Hertford  Pender  None Wayne 
Clay  Hoke  None Perquimans  None Wilkes 
Cleveland  Hyde  None Person  Wilson 
Columbus  Iredell  Pitt  Yadkin 
Craven  None Jackson  Polk  None Yancey  None

 = unsuccessful referendum;  = successful referendum

Last updated 1/1/23

Transit Sales Tax: With voter approval, a county may levy a sales tax for transit purposes 
of either one half cent (Durham, Forsyth, Guilford, Mecklenburg, Orange & Wake counties) 
or one-quarter cent (all other counties) under G.S. 105, Article 43. To date, four counties 
have held successful referenda (Durham, Mecklenburg, Orange, and Wake) and New 
Hanover County has held one unsuccessful referendum.

Sales Tax Referenda History
Optional Quarter Cent Sales Tax:  If approved by local voters, a county may levy an optional quarter-cent sales tax under G.S. 105, Article 46. 
To date, 47 counties levy the tax; an additional 31 counties have held unsuccessful referenda. 



����������	���
�����	����	���������������������������������������������������� !�"#$��������%������!&�'����(�������)*��������������+,�,�-,.,�"/0#0102������3�3������ ���������������������%����3�4,(������������4������������������������ ���3��%�������������3�����.�����5���3��%�6�������������3����������������3�����!���%����3�4������3�3�������� ������3����7�����7�����!�����3���3��������,�(���3�����!���%����3�4�4�!� �����3����!����������4��3��������������!��������8�3��7���������������&��������4��!�����������������#��4 ���3�!����&���������!���������������3����7�8�����������������������������!���������,�9�3���+�-.�"/0#01:&������������������ ���3�%��4����3��7�4���������������%����3�4�8��������";#4����������3,
(�5���3��%������!���44������������������ ��7���3�������!���������������%�����4�<����!��%�����������7��������%����3�4������������������%������!,

=>	��	?���>����
�	���@��A����B��������B�?�C>����>�B@���D�	?�E�?��B@FG
H@���>��I�	?B��E�J�@��A�J�FF�����?���KA��>��	����	���E��>��K���?	

?�K���>��?�E�?��B@FG
J	�	��@��A��
@�	��@��E�>�F�������>�L	����		
	?��E�>�



���������	
�����������
������������������	�������������
�����������������
�������		����������	
��
����
��������������
�������
��������������
����������������������
������
�������������������������������	������������������������
������
����������������� ������	�����������������������������������
��
���������
�����
��������������������������������������
!�
������"���������������������
������#$�%�&'(�$�%�)�*+, ���
���
����
��������
!�
�������
������-.��
����/�01�23/4����
�����������
���������,�
��
������
���
����
��������
!���5+����� ����
����
!�
	������������
��
��
�������23/�
 ����
�����
!�	
������	��������������������������
�����
����
����
����
�������������
����������������������,�����
������(�������
����
���61��
��5�
��
������������&����!
	��7����
���������	������������+���	��������������������
�����������
���
����7������
�������


89:989;<=>?
@A�BC989�D�E89AF8GH9<�:I8>DB�:I8�BC9�J=9ABGI;�I:�BC9�HDKKIB?
LC9;�GA�BC9�9D8KG9AB�BC9�ADK9A�BDM�NGKK�H9FI>9�9::9FBGO9�G:�BC9�PID8<�I:QI=;BR�QI>>GAAGI;98A�K9OG9A�BC9�ADK9A�BDM�OGD�89AIK=BGI;�:IKKING;S�DA=FF9AA:=K�89:989;<=>?



�����������	�
������������������������������	�
������������������������������������	�	����	����������������������������������	�������	���������������������������������������������
������
������� ���	����!���������������������������������������������	���"�	������
������������������������	������������������������������������������	������������������������������	��������	�����������������������������������������	������������������������������������������	���������������������������������#������$���		������%���������������������&�'�� ���()"""��������*!�(+,-"#������������������������	�����	�������������&�.�����������������������������������	���
*���#���������������������������	����������/�	���	���������������
�����	���������������	����
����������

01�234�562478�9:88�234�741474;<=>�167�234�8:?48�2:@A�B3:2�3:994;8�;4@2C
D74�23474�74827EF2E6;8�6;�234�=84�61�234�7454;=48C
01�234�741474;<=>�1:E?8A�F:;�:�F6=;2G�36?<�:�8=H84I=4;2�741474;<=>�6;



���������	�
����������������������������������������������������������
�������������������
���
������
�����������
����������������
�������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������ �
���
�������!���	�
������������������������������	���������
��
������������������ �
�����"������
����������������
���������
�	��
������������������
�������������������
���
��������
����������� ��#������������������
������������������
������������
���������� ��#��������������
�����
�������� �����������

�����������������������������������������������	�����������
���
��
������������ ������
��

$%&�'()&�*+&'$,-./
0(.�(�1-+.$2�'3&.4�3+56,1�)-.&2�&4+1($,.7�1,$,8&.'�-.�,''+&'�9&6($&4�$-$%&�9&:&9&.4+)/
0(.�)&)5&9'�-:�(�1-+.$2�5-(94�-:�1-)),'',-.&9'�(1$,;&62�39-)-$&�$%&3(''(7&�-:�$%&�9&:&9&.4+)/
<-&'�$%&�'(6&'�$(=�(3362�$-�+.39&3(9&4�:--4�-9�7('/

No.  The local-option sales tax does not apply to unprepared food (i.e. groceries) or gas
purchases.  There is no local sales tax on gas purchases.



POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823   

RESOLUTION 2023-026 
CALLING FOR A SPECIAL ADVISORY REFERENDUM  

CONCERNING THE LEVY OF ONE-QUARTER PERCENT SALES AND USE TAX 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH N.C. GEN. STAT. § 105-537 

TO BE HELD ON: MARCH 5th, 2024 

WHEREAS,  in 2007, the North Carolina General Assembly enacted the “One-Quarter Cent 

County Sales and Use Tax Act”, codified as Article 46 of Chapter 105 of the North Carolina General 

Statues which authorizes counties to levy an additional sales and use tax; and 

WHEREAS, in order to levy such tax, Washington County must conduct a special advisory 

referendum in accordance with the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-287; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners wish to hold the special 

advisory referendum during the statewide PRIMARY election to be held on the date first stated in the 

resolution title above, subject to any adjustment thereof directed by the State Board of Elections. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Washington County Board of 

Commissioners as follows: 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



1. That pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 105-537, the Washington County Board of Commissioners

hereby directs the Washington County Board of Elections to conduct a special advisory

referendum as described herein, to be held during the normal time the polls are open on first

stated in the resolution title above, in accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-287, and to take all

necessary steps to that end in accordance with this resolution and applicable law.

2. That pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat §105-537, the form of the question to appear on the ballots and

in the instructions to voters for said referendum shall be as follows:

[  ] FOR [  ] AGAINST 

Local sales and use tax at the rate of one-quarter percent (0.25%) in 

addition to all other State and local sales and use taxes. 

3. That the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners is hereby authorized and directed to mail or

deliver a certified copy of this resolution to the Washington County Board of Elections within

three (3) business days after the passage hereof.

4. That this resolution shall take effect upon its passage

Adopted this ____ day of __________________, ______. 

_____________________________________ 

Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 

Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC Clerk 
to the Board  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
ALBEMARLE COMMISSION AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
 
Please see the attached letter. 
 
 
 
 





 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  10 
 
       DATE:  September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval and information. (See attached.) 
 
 
 



















































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
 
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a)  Skinnersville Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
b) PK12 Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

 
 
 Department Head Reports from August 2023 (see attached) 

 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
September 5, 2023 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Vacant 
 

 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
 EMS STAFFING:    

The EMS Division officially has (1) full-time Paramedic position and (1) Basic EMT position 
available.  The Transport Division has two full-time EMT positions available with an offer of 
employment out on one of those. We are also accepting applications for part-time positions for 
all levels (EMT, A-EMT, and Paramedic). One full-time Paramedic and one full-time Basic 
EMT have been hired since our last report.  

SAFETY AND PPE:  

We are seeing an increase in patients positive for COVID, the Flu and/or RSV in both counties.  
Currently, we have one Provider out of work with COVID but expected to be released to return 
soon.  Our PPE is at approximately 120 days of coverage in the event we experienced a peak.  
Recently, I took delivery of a large amount of supplies at no cost to the county from ECU Health. 

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:   

UNC PECC+ Program:  PECC coordinator Jessica Howery attended the PECC Summit where 
they had an extensive day of learning and discussion, followed by each Coordinator going 
through a pediatric Advanced Life Support scenario complete with Radio Dispatches and use of 
their ALS gear on specialized mannequins. 

Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:  Continuing to work closely with the group.  Three 4-Life 
training sessions have been conducted in Washington County this month.  Currently more than 
160 people have been trained in life saving measures by our agency.   

 A Basic EMT class has started in Roper at the BCCC campus with six students.  They meet on 
Tuesdays and Thursdays and the class is being instructed by Paramedics from our agency that 
also teach for BCCC 

Thank you for your continued support of EMS.   

 
 



 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 

At the Recreation Center on 8/12/23 we had our football camp it was a great success.  We have 3 
football teams 8u 10u 12u and still signing up kids for each team.  Our first game will be 
September 16, 2023. 
 

Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
 No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
 Staffing: 
No changes to document. 
 
Programming: 

• Our Summer Reading Program officially wrapped up on August 2nd; the NC Symphony 
hosted a “bonus program” as part of their Music Discovery series on August 8th and those 
attendance numbers were added into our overall statistics for the state. 

• We had ~300 participants in this summer’s SRP which exceeded last year’s total due to 
daycare attendance.  

• “4 Life” Basic First Aid classes will be conducted on a monthly/bimonthly basis on the 
premises.  

• Washington County Library has been awarded their third consecutive “Grassroots Arts” 
grant; planning will begin soon to secure artists. 

• Virtual story time sessions have resumed due to school beginning and low attendance 
numbers for F2F sessions. 

• We will be a vendor at this year’s “Trick or Treat on Water Street” in October. 
• Fall/Winter programming will be planned according to community interest. 

 
Library Business/Community Happenings: 

• The Pettigrew Regional Library system has recently issued “lifelong bans” in regard to 
two “problem patrons” who have exhibited unsuitable behavior in several of our 
branches; documentation has been submitted with staff made aware of who these patrons 
are and the procedures that must take place in case they step onto our properties. 

• Our (4) Little Libraries are up and running; the most recent install is at Washington 
County Senior Center; statistics/refills are conducted at the end of each month. 

• We are actively seeking out new members to add to our Library Board; applications for 
consideration are available on our Facebook page and at the Circulation Desk. 



 

• New shelving units have been ordered for our children’s room to migrate our Juvenile 
Non-Fiction back into its proper place. 

 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 

   
    
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
 
 
 



 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We remained busy this month with tax collections.  As of the date of this 
report, our monthly collections for the current tax year are over $1.7 million.    

2. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
3. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor vehicles.  
4. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 

addresses in GIS.  
5. Continue to work with the landfill.  They call us for verification of ownership 

of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.     

6. Attended the Commissioner’s meeting and Department Head meeting. 
7. The Statistical report was submitted. 
8. Present-Use Value applications were received for newly transferred properties.  
9. Submitted additional information for the Auditors.  
10. Received and processed personal property appeals.   
11. Received numerous phone calls and inquiries regarding accounts after the tax 

bills were mailed.   
12. Received and processed several applications for motor vehicle exemptions.  
13. Processed requests from businesses for “work papers” for their business 

listings.  We get these requests each year after the tax bills are mailed, they 
want to see what our depreciation schedule is.   

14. Will begin interviews for open positions in the tax office next month.  
 

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

Permits Issued     22  
Plan Reviews       5  
Floodplain Reviews      2  
Inspections completed    44  
  
Consultations:  Town of Plymouth Utilities with MetCon for WashCo PK-12  

             Smithfield with DOI for fire suppression  
 Floodplain – New Elevation Certificate form review with FEMA  
CRS audit documents and reviews completed for Towns of Creswell, 
Roper, Plymouth as well as for Washington County  
  

August 7 Public Hearing with Commissioners regarding Special Use Permit for 
construction of cell tower at NC 45 South in Plymouth  



 

Presented department information update for Planning Board and 
Planning/Inspections Department  

August 8 Department Head meeting  
August 17 Planning Board – Roper – Public Hearing for Special Use application for 

cell tower at 10180 NC 32 South in Plymouth – recommended to Board of 
Adjustments for approval.  

August 24 Webinar:  How to Prepare for And Address Workplace Emergencies 
(staff)  

August 25 Webinar:  Disaster and Resilience – Hurricane Preparedness for 
Businesses-  
Risk Assessment (staff)  

 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Explored and diagnosed main water ways of the county for blockages, beavers, and 
aquatic weeds. 

2. Renewed contract with Denton Wildlife pertaining to Beaver Control in Washington 
County. 

3. Created and submitted contract bidding opportunities for Aquatic Weed Control and 
Clearing and Snagging of main waterways in Washington County. (July 14, 2023) Due: 
September 21, 2023 

4. Prepared GPS and other tools for future surveys for Cost Share Program. 
5. Had maintenance done on motor for the boat (Yamaha 6hp) 
6. Did research on ways of controlling aquatic weeds efficiently. 
7. Signed up to attend Black Lands Tour (8-2-23) 
8. Attempting to contact surrounding state parks to discuss methods of waterway 

maintenance, and water distribution. 
9. Discussed Aerial Seeding with the Stokesberry Aviation on Hwy 99. 
10. Signed up to attend C.E.T training program (September 18-21, 2023) 
11. Completed the local advisory boards Nutrient Management Strategy spreadsheet. 
12. Contacted contractors about bidding on work for county contracts. 
13. Attended Black Lands Tour (August 2, 2023) 
14. Participated in National Night Out in Plymouth. (August 1,2023) 
15. Attended Scuppernong Steering Committee meeting online (August 10, 2023) 
16. Created a survey sheet to give to farmers at events to see what BMPs they are most 

interested in. 
17. Created a new logo and application to present to the board. 



 

18. Reached out to cooperators for intentions of 2024 contracts and got prices of intended 
practices. 

19. Talked to Nutrien representative about pricing for use of drone to spray aquatic weeds. 
Possible option for future maintenance of waterways. 

20. Worked on past Cost Share folders and getting them up to standard for future audit. 
21. Tagged along with Beaver control to shadow and gather information on how to better 

control the beavers in the area. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 

 
 



 

 
 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
   
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 1 runway light.  
2. Continue repairing ground height around duct units. 
3. Filling in runway/taxiway washouts from rainfalls. 
4. Mowing lots of grass. 
5. Continue cleaning fuel farm. 
6. Repairing drainage problem areas. 
7. Future Projects:   
 Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose.                                                 
  Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                   
 Clean logging road overgrowth.    
 Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.                                                        

 
o Runway: will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ 

zone to meet FAA safety standards. Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to 
improve mowing and save wear and tear on airport equipment.                                                             

o Repair Beacon                                                                                                         
o Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)           
o Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                             

 
And other items that are not on this list.                                

 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• The Courthouse doors are scheduled to be tinted on August 30th to help keep Security a 
little bit cooler. 

• Two doors and 5 windows have been ordered to be repaired on the Board of Elections 
building. 

Maintenance: 
• We have completed 55 work orders. 
• The roof on the new Probation/Parole bldg. has been repaired. 
• The DAC probation/ Parole people have been moved into the new bldg. 
• The fire alarm system at the BOE bldg. is working properly.  The mold in the HVAC 

room has been cleaned up. 
Upcoming projects: 

• Start to remodel the former Facilities office in the Courthouse. 
• The floor at the Health Department should be completed this week. 

 
 



 

MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   12 
   
       DATE:     September 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda September 5, 2023
	9-5-2023 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds, Insolvents
	RESO 2023-022 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000
	RESO 2023-023 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200
	RESO 2023-024 Emergency Preparedness Month 2023
	RESO 2023-025 Erection of a historical marker at Mackey's
	History Marker docs
	Washington County SAA Delegate List 2023
	9-5-2023 Item 2 (public forum)
	9-5-2023 Item 3 Employee of the Quarter
	9-5-2023 Item 4 Brief Report Davis' office
	9-5-2023 Item 5 Opioid Spending Update
	DB (2) Washco Settlement info as of 20230901
	Exhibit-A-to-NC-MOA-3
	Washington County Opioid Settlement Request - August 2023
	9-5-2023 Item 6 Public Hearing -Riverlight Transit Admin App
	5311 EBS Grant Application
	5a- Public Hearing Notice
	5c- Program Resolution
	Affix Notary Seal Here

	5d- Public Hearing Record
	PUBLIC HEARING RECORD
	Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
	Affix Seal Here
	VOLUNTARY TITLE VI PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
	Thank you for your cooperation.


	5f- Local Share Certification
	Source of Funds      Apply to Grant                Amount

	9-5-2023 Item 7 Quasi-Judicial Hearing-Special Use Permit--Cell Tower--Tower Com
	Special Use Permit Quasi Judicial Hearing Procedure TowerCom for 20230905 with attachments
	TowerCom Special Use Permit Application and PD Docs reorg.pdf
	SEQU1522723082916150
	SEQU1522723082916170


	9-5-2023 Item 8 Local Option Sales Tax
	BOCC Memo re LOST Referendum 2024 for 20230905 BOCC mtg w attachments
	9-5-2023 Item 9 Boards & Committees
	AAC AAA RAC
	9-5-2023 Item 10 Finance Officer's Report
	Finance report August 2023
	BAs-BTs
	9-5-2023 Item 11 Other Items
	Reports for 9-5-2023 BoC Meeting 
	9-5-2023 Item 12 Closed Session



